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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Kakinada SEZ Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kakinada SEZ Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and Order issued under
Section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of Matter

a. We draw attention to Note 10{a), to the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018, the company has disputed the claims from the Income Tax department
pertaining to various years in respect of which the first two appellate authority of Income Tax
department decided the issue against the company and the company is presently in appeal
before the next forum seeking redressal of the issue, pending the outcome of the appellate
proceedings the amount demanded aggregating to Rs.812.97 lakhs (Excluding consequential
penalties if any to be levied) has not been provided, in view of pendency of appeal before the
appellate authorities. The management based on expert’s opinion and on the strength of the
merits of the issue is confident of a favourable outcome.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure
A", astatement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)
(b)
c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules

issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company

as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section

164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i) the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 26(ii) to the standalone financial
statements;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ilij Currently there are no amounts held by the company that are required to be
transferred to Investor education and protection fund hence we do not comment
on the same; and

For K.5. Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0031095

M ot

Place: Chennai M. Krishna Chaithanya
Date: 30.04.2018 Partner

Membership No. 231282
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Annexure — “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company. Immovable properties of land and buildings wherever
title deeds have been pledged as securities towards loans, guarantees etc availed by the
company or by third parties on the basis of mortgage of assets of company are stated to
have been held in the name of the company (the lenders of the company or third parties
have also accepted the assets as security for creating mortgages) and are directly
confirmed by the lenders through security trustee as on the reporting date.

i) The Company is engaged in the business of developing and operation of Special Economic
Zone and does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

iil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses iii(a),
iii{b) and iii(c) of the order are not applicable to the company.

iv] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 of the Act. Being a company engaged in the
business of providing infrastructure facilities as specified in Schedule VI to Companies Act,
2013 the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, are not applicable to the company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposit from the public in accordance with the provisions of Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the
Company.
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vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the order is not required.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

vii) (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory

dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no amounts payable in
respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added

Tax which have not been deposited on account of any disputes except as follows:-

Nature of Disputed Amount paid Period Forum where the
Dues Amount under dispute is pending
(in Lakhs) | protest/Adjusted |
_ ) (in lakhs) i
Income Tax 136.09 136.09 AY 2007-2008 | Pending before appeal
) | for High Court
Income Tax 111.16 19.19 AY 2007-2008 | Pending before appeal
(Penalty) _ - for High Court
Income Tax 251.41 251.41 AY 2008-2009 | Pending before appeal
- . | forHighCourt |
{ Income Tax 207.12 NIL AY 2008-2009 | Pending before appeal
(Penalty) e for High Court
Income Tax 57.48 56.09 AY 2009-2010 | Pending before appeal
| for High Court
Income Tax 8.81 8.81 | AY 2010-2011 | CIT Appeals
Income Tax 1.35 1.35 | AY 2011-2012 | CIT Appeals
Income Tax 27.16 27.16 AY 2013-2014 | CIT Appeals
Income Tax 12.39 2.48 AY 2015-2016 | CIT Appeals
| Total 812.97 502.59 - -

viii) Based on the audit procedure and according to the information given to us, we are of the
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings due to

financial institutions, banks, government or debenture holders.
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ix)

xi)

xii)
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The company did not raise any money by way of Initial Public Offer or further public offer
lincluding debt instruments). On the basis of review of utilisation of funds on overall basis the
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

xv)

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act 1934,
For K.S. Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0031095
Place: Chennai M. Krishna Chaithanya
Date: 30.04.2018 Partner

Membership No. 231282

Chennai Office: 7-B - 7th Floor of Century Plaza, 560-562 Anna Salai, Chennai 600 018
email : mail.chennai@ksrao.in - Ph. No.6382898526
Also at Hyderabad, Bengaluru & Vijayawada



% CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kakinada 5EZ limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.5. Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0031095

ML chasthosg

Place: Chennai M. Krishna Chaithanya
Date: 30.04.2018 Partner
Membership No. 231282
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Auditor's Report on Quarterly and Year to Date Ind AS Financial Results of Kakinada SEZ Limited
pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

To
The Board of Directors of
Kakinada SEZ Limited

1. We have audited the accompanying statement of Ind AS financial results of Kakinada SEZ
Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2018, attached herewith,
prepared by the Company for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial results of
GMR Infrastructure limited (GIL} pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July S, 2016. The quarterly Ind AS financial results are the derived
figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended March 31, 2018 and the
published year-to-date figures up to December 31, 2017, being the date of the end of the third
guarter of the current financial year, which were subject to limited review. The Ind AS financial
results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2018 have been prepared on the basis of the
Ind AS financial results for the nine-month period ended December 31, 2017, the audited annual
Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the relevant
requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016, which
are the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial
results based on our review of the Ind AS financial results for the nine-month period ended
December 31, 2017 which were prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India; our audit of the annual
Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the relevant
requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial results are free of material misstatements. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts disclosed as financial results. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
these quarterly and year to date Ind AS financial results:

i.  are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016, in this regard; and

ii.  give a true and fair view of the net loss and other financial information for the quarter
and the year ended March 31, 2018,
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4. We draw attention to Note 10(a), to the accompanying financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018, the company has disputed the claims from the Income Tax department
pertaining to various years in respect of which the first two appellate authority of Income Tax
department decided the issue against the company and the company is presently in appeal
before the next forum seeking redressal of the issue, pending the outcome of the appellate
proceedings the amount demanded aggregating to Rs.812.97 lakhs (Excluding consequential
penalties if any to be levied) has not been provided, in view of pendency of appeal before the
appellate authorities. The management based on expert’s opinion and on the strength of the
merits of the issue is confident of a favourable outcome. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of the above matter.

5. Further, read with paragraph 1 above, we report that the figures for the quarter ended
March 31, 2018 represent the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the
financial year ended March 31, 2018 and the published year-to-date figures up to December 31,
2017, being the date of the end of the third quarter of the current financial year, which were
subjected to a limited review as stated in paragraph 1 above, as required under Regulation 33 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016.

6. This report is furnished solely to enable GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL) to prepare consolidated
financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2018 for submission to the Board of
Directors of GIL in the format prescribed under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016
dated July 5, 2016 and their auditors in their audit of such consolidated financial results.

7. Accordingly, this report is not for the use or benefit of any other party nor is it to be copied, made
available to or otherwise disclosed to any other party and, we do not accept or assume any liability
or duty of care to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

For K.5. Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0031095

M chaa

Place: Chennai M. Krishna Chaithanya
Date: 30.04.2018 Partner

Membership No. 231282
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED
Statement of standalone assets and liabilities

{inRs.)
As at March 31,
Particutars As #t March 31, 2018 2017
S (Audited)
— {Audited)
3} Non-current assets
Propany, plant snd equipment 1.50,49,638 2,72,57,392
Capital work in progress 20.83,37,68,619 18,36,21,69,722
Investment property 13,95.83.853 13,48,29.018
Other intangible assets 172,350 3,78,206
Financial assets
lavestments 1,00,000 1,00,000
Others. 7,64.58,637 7.70,81,049
Non-current batance of current tax assets {Net} 88,78,305 49,64,953
Cther non-current assets 1,60,83.58,936 1,58,55,32,937
b} Current assets '
Inventories
Financial assets
Loans and advances 3753 28,000
Teade receivables 63,500 60,956
Cashand cash equivalents 60,86,202 35,08,760
Cither financial assety 5.20,377 4,96,010
Other current assets 32,45,226 31,64,057
99,18,458 72,587,783

2 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS (wsbi 13,90,12,09,784 | 36,19,96,81,060

a) Equity
Equity share capital $3,95,43,161 93,99,43,161
Other equity {14,26,29,173) 9,79,91,101)
Equity contribution from parent campany-Related party loan “
Total equity — 79@',::: 84,19,52,060
b) Non-current liabilities
Fingncial Habitites
Borrowings 9,12,70,44,100 13,28,04,67,690
Provigions 1,77,68,320 1.17,90.442
Other financial Kiabilities 88,23,70,441 25,78,331
m
10,0086 86| 13295036563
¢} Current fiabilitles
Financial liabitities
Provisions 86,13,401 95,72,704
Othr financia liabilitles 11,65,95,54,51¢ 6,04,37,28,037
Other currant Rabilities 3,01,24,995 { 91,91,816
M
] 11,69,82, §,06,24,92,536
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIASILITIES {ashec) 22,50,22,89,764 20,19,96,81,080
to. -
ForKS.Rao & Co For and on betlf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regn.No. 0031098
Chartered Aczountants

M cho

M.Xrishna Chiaithanys
Partner
Membership No 231282

Mate Hyderabad
Date 30th Aprif, 3018

BVMNAx ’.
Uirector Director
DIN. 00051167 OIN 00782667

@M 2 QA vl .
G.V. Suresh Kumar Srinivass Rao Sury
Company Secratary CFO y

Place Hyderbad
Date 30th April, 2018




KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Audited Results for Quarter and year ended March 31, 2018
{in Rs.)
Particulars Quarter ended Year ended
31-Mar-18 31.0ec.17 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
{Refer Notes Belaw} Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited
A |Continuing Operations
1 [income
a} Revenue fram operations
i} Sales/income from operatigns 5,340,494 5,300,463 21,120,083 21,215,591 21,120,081
it} Other operating income 845,786 96,344 1,833,988 1,748,360 1,833,988
b} Other income
Total income 6,186,280 $,396,807 22,954,069 22,963,951 22,954,069
2 |Expenses
{a} Employee benefits expense 7,385,827 7,624,783 23,346,350 22,954,991 23,346,350
{b} Finance costs 5,113,905 £,047,663 25,246,083 21,438,381 25,246,083
{c} Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,635,885 1,672,238 6,954,244 6,634,423 6,954,244
{d) Other expensas 1,221,128 7,605,303 22,559,790 15,119,423 24,749,650
Total expenses 10,356,742 22,949,987 78,106,467 66,147,218 80,296,327
3 |Profit/{ioss) before exceptionat items and tax expense ram {4,170,362} {17.553,180H (55,152,397} {43,183,267) {57.342,257)
continuing operations {1.2)
4 |Exceptionai items
§ |Prafit/{lass) from continuing operations before tax expenses 3¢ (4,120,462) (17,553,180}  (55,152,397) {43,183,267) {57.342,257)}
£ [Tax expenses of continuing operations
{a} Current tax
{b) Deferred tax
7 |Profit/{ioss) after tax from cantinuing operations (S £ 6) {4,170,462) {17,553,180} (55,152,397} (43,183,267}  (57,342,257)|
8 |Other Comprebensive income
(A} {i} Hems that wilt not ba reclassitied to profit or luss
{i) income tax relating to iterns that will not be
Heclassified to profit or loss
{B} {i} tems that wiil be reclassif-ed to predit or loss (985.606) 1334,173) 2,760,665 {1,454,808) 152,154
{ii} income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or losy
9 [Total vther comprehensive income, net of tax far the respective pel {985,606) {334,173} 2,760,665 [1,454,804) 152,154
10 {Total comprehensive income for the respective poriods (7 ¢ 9) {5,156,068) {17,887,353)] (82.391,732) {44,638,071}|  (57,190.103}
fcomprising Profit {toss) and Other comprehensive incame {net of
tax} for the respective prricds)
1% [Earnings per equity shave {for continuing operatlons)
Basx & dituted {0,05) {0.19) {0.56) {0.46) {0.61)
Neote |
Phe fmnes of Eas bastpanted of current 3od prov o vaans are the balancing fisurcs boragen the sl figurcs o spevt o the Bl Basnaais v amid i pabh-bed
unaudi o year e L Bgures fur ome manths cnds 2 o the rapucing yean
For K.5.Rao & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regn.No: 0031095
Chartered Accountants
’ B.V.N.Rao P, Jayadev
M.Krishna Chaithanya Director Director
Pantner DIN D00S118? DIN: 0782667

Membership Ne. 231282 @

G.V. Suresh Kumar
Company Sufetury

A Y ™
2.8 i Wi
Srinivasa Raog Suru

{FQ

Plate Hyderabad
Date 30th Aprit, 2018

Piace Hyderbad
Date 30th Aprd, 2018




KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH 201% Amt in Rs,
Particulars Hotes March 34, 2018 March 31, 3017

Assets;

Hon-Currant Assets o 7 A
Propeny  Pantand Equlpment o 2 asoaes)  amaeases
thvestment Property ) - A e 13,49,25,018

Investeent Property under construction sl neessn 18,36,21,69,722

| Otheriangibie assets o N 172330 370815
Fimandal Assery ' ' ‘ I - - ‘

_lnvestments ) - 7 ’ 1,060,000 1,00,000
Other Financlal Assets ’ - 9 o rmseew| 7,70.91,049
Other non-cusrent assets el R T
HNon current tox assets{nat) 11 88,78,305 o 49,64,953

22,49,23,70,307 30,19,24,23,279

Correst Assets '
Finanilal Assats o N e
Cash and cash equivalents _uf 6086202 3508750
Loans | Y T | 28000
Other Financtsl Assets sl s e 496010 |

Othercurcent agsets B o ol 32.45,226 31,604,087
' 95,1457 72,57,783

Total Assats ) , 22,50,22,89,764 | 20,19,96,81,062
Equity & Uabilities:

Equly ‘ L .
Equity Share Capltal T a6 eys943i61
Other equity s (14,26,29,173 9,79,91,101]

T I
Sorowings o s 9,12,70,44,100§ 13,28,04,67,650

prodsions o 17 1,72,68,320 1,17,90,422

_ Gther Liab ‘ 19 86.23,70,442 29,78,331

Current Hiabilitlas
Financlal Uabilities
. Other financiat lia};i!;’tyiesy N ) 8F 11,63,95,64,518 6,04,37,28,017
Provisions T seazdor] 95,72,704
Other Usbilities ; ; 11 3,01,24,995 91,81,816

Tatal Equity & Liabilities ] 22,50,22,88,764 20,19,96,81,062

Significant Accounting Policies & Disclosures 1&2

As per our report of even date

For K.5.850 & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Birsctors
Firm Regn.No: 0031695 '
Chartered Accountants

(L{f e E"é@m,,i

M.Krishna Chaithanya B.V.N.Rao P, Jayadev
Partner - Director Directar
Membership No.231282 DIN: 00051167 DIN: 00782667
-
EB U 2 g4 AR -
G.V. Suresh Kumar Stinivasa Rao Suru
Company Secretary CFO
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderbad
Date: 30th Aprit, 2018 Date: 30th April, 2018
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2018

Amt In Rs,
01st April-2017 to 315t | O1st April-2016 to
Particulars Notes :\:arch, 2018 31st March, 2017
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations 20 2,12,15,591 2,11,20,081
Other income 21 17,48,360 18,33,988
Total Revenue 2,29,63,851 2,29,54,069
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 22 2,29,54,991 2,33,46,350
Depreciation 23 66,34,423 69,54,244
Other Expenses 24 1,51,19,423 2,47,49,650
Finance Costs 25 2,14,38,381 2,52,46,083
Total Expenses 6,61,47,218 -~ 8,02,96,327
Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax {4,31,93,267) {5,73,42,257)
Exceptional items . -
Profit/{loss) before and tax {4,31,83,267) {5,73,42,257)
(1} Current tax
{2} Deferred tax
income tax expense - -
Profit/{loss) for the year (4,31,83,267} {5,73,42,257)
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive incame to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on transliation of foreign operations - -
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains {losses) on defined henefit plans
{14,54,804) 1,52,154
incame tax effect
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year- (8) {14,54,804) . 1,52,154
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+8) {4,46,38,071) {5.71,90,103)
Earning Per Share asg {0.46) {0.61)
As per our report of even date
For K.S.Rao & Co Far and on behaif of the Board of Directars
Firm Regn.No: 0031095 . ¢
Chartered Accountants "
AO AR
ﬁz ﬂ\ﬁ“"’{:)« -
{\w‘k» QQ\;‘}Q; t WA x A%:?:;;i;idt@ B.V.N.Rao P. layadev
M.Krishna Chaithanya * Director Director
Partner DIN: 00051167 DIN: 00782667
Membership No.231282 5
@ Fpoery 280 .
G.V. Suresh Kumar Srinlvasa Rao sury

Company Secretary CFO L

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderbad
Date: 30th April, 2018 Date: 30th April, 2018
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2018

Arnt In R,
partlculsrs Notes March 31,2018 March 31,2017

CASH FLOW EROM / {USED 1N} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/{Loss) before Tax [as3gony . 16.71,90,103)
Profit/ lass) hefore tax expenses B : {4.45,38,07) 5,21.30,103
Adjustements ta reconcile grofit befard tax 16 n8i cosh flows: T )
Depraciation of investment propenties U 66,34,423 69.54,244
Finance cosy 2,14,38,381 o 2,52,46,083
Proceeds from mutusl fung Investment Unwinding of Interest on T
Security deposit {17,48,360) {18,23,988)
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,83,23.627; {2,88,23,765)
Movements In working capital ; . N
M !0 provislon, gratully 3nd govi. grants , BABST6] T Ti3,34,36,050
tcrease/{Decrease) in trade and other receivablas 3nd
prepaymants {2,61,81,172) 12,8L.12,628
ncease In tade and other ia ables , 2054067131 3,2,1-%95,81@)'
Cash e 2,01,40.80.891 (24,62,42,595)
Jincome Tax ua e ., 21,932
Net cash flow fram operating activities (A} 2014080891 e 1 34,62,25,063)
CASH FLOW JUSED IN) / EROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES o . o
Proceeds from mutual furd lnvextment,Unwlndmg of Interest on
Secusity depoylt S 17,48,360 18,33,988
Purchase of property, plantand squlpment . {22,41,205) {2,48,16,011
Increase In bwestments -
Purchase of Investment Properties = T e {23,99,63,230}
Interest recelved ( finance income) . N
Net cash flow used in Investing actlvittes (g) . e 29,04560m6]) 120,33,83,694;

CASH FLOW (USED (] / FROM EINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Pald ~ {2.59,91,41, 170} 11,34,76,03,888

Eroceeds from borrowlngs 6,35,26,13,275 | 2,25,10,51,891

Repayment of Borrowings e {5,52,45,10,479} (86,04,35,707

Net cash flow (used in) / from financing activitles (€) 1,77,10,47.374 ) 34,33,32,996

Net (decrease) / Inerasse In cash and cash equivalents (A +8 )

Cash and cash equivalents at beg'nning of the year 35,08,760

Cash and eash equivalents at year end 60,086,202

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ) T

Cash on hand 25,7800 e 41,520

With banks- oa current account 60,36,956 34,45,497
- an deposit account 23,056 21,734

Tatal cash and cash equivalents {note §) 80,86,202 35,08,760

Notes:
1 Amendment to Ind AS 7
Effective April 1, 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires entitles 1o provide disclosures that enable
users of finandial statements to evaluate changes In Jiabilities arlsing from financing activitles, including both changes arlsing (rom
cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of » reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the bafance
for Rabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement, The reconciliation is given as below:

Non Cash changes

$.No _|Particulars 01.04.2017 Cash Flows Falr Value changes
1jtang Term Borrowings 13,28,04,67,650 {4,15,34,23,590
2|Cutrent maturities of long term botrowings 2,37,85,95,358 4,98,15,17,386 ]
For K.5.Rape & Co For and an behalf of the Board of Diractars
Firm Regn.No; 0031095 o ~—
Chartered Accountants ey (:A} J
; e ) \S:}w;_"
, 1 = PP 4 d Yo o e
i P/ H
7 b Thoeaiad T chatere ¢ Sl
ML s v \K Acoounlants B.V.N.Rao P. layadiv
M.Krishna Chaithanya Director Director
Partner DIN: 00051167 DIN: 00782867
Membership No.231282 -y
3 s ¥,
%%ﬁf‘ 5 E L WART.
G.V. Suresh Kumar Srinivasa Rao Suriy, e
Company Secretary CFO .
Place: Hyderabad Place. Hyderahad
Date: 30th April, 2018 Date: 30th April, 2018




Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate information

Kakinada SEZ Ltd ('KSEZ’ or ‘the Company’) is & public limited Company domiciled in India. It isa
subsidiary to GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited. The Company is developing a special econamic
zone (SEZ) near Kakinada in East Godavari district of Andhra Pradesh.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
30th April, 2018.

L

Significant accounting policics
2.1.  Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to the extent notified).
The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

2,2

Summary of significant accounting policies

2. Current versus non-current classification

by

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

ili. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting petiod

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
il. 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

SERO
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Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.
Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Fair value measurement of financia) instruments

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date using valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level } - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabitities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

i
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Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue from construction activity

Construction revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
construction activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated tota] contract costs. Where the outcome of
the construction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of the construction
costs incurred if it is probable that they will be recoverable. When the outcome of the contract is
ascertained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost of wark performed on the contract plus
proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is the
proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the total estimated contract costs. The estimated
outcome of a contract is considered reliable when all the following conditions are satisfied:

i. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

ii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Company,

iii. The stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably,
iv. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be measured reliably

Provision is made for all losses incurred to the balance sheet date. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
and they are capable of being reliably measured. Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as
expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract.
For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of contract costs incurred to-date and
recognised profits (or recognised losses, as the case may be), the surplus is shown as the amount due
to customers, Amount received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance
Sheet as a liability towards advance received. Amounts billed for work performed but yet to be paid
by the customers are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables,

Income from management/ technical services

Income from management/ technical services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the
basis of services rendered.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest




Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Taxes on income
Current income tax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current
tax is calculated using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of the taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability model.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast,
deferred assets are only recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (*‘MAT?) paid in accordance with the tax laws
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against
future income tax liability, Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the asset will be realized.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale
should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision
to sell will be withdrawn, Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from
the date of classification,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets , its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:
#) The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
b} An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated,
¢) The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its
current fair value,
d) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification , and
e) Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the
plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value
less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the
standalone balance sheet,

Property, plant and cquipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at March 31, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as on April I,
2015.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
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Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

component accounted for as a separate assets are derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred,

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their
useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Category of nsset* Estimated useful life
Plant and equipment 4 — 15 years*

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 - 10 years
Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever
is lower, on straight line basis,

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by the technical expert and management
estimate, depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing Rs 5,000 or less
to be less than one year, whichever is lower than those indicated in Schedule 1. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over
which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period with the affect of any change in the estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
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of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

A summary of the policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is, as follows;

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method | Internally generated
used or acquired

Computer software Definite (6 years) Straight-line basis Acquired

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended vse or
sale. All other botrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease,

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Company as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased asset or, at the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease,
whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

a. another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary
because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on a weighted
average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognised as “Contract work in
progress”.

Contract work in progress comprising construction costs and other directly attributable overheads is
valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE,
investment property, intangible assets and investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture
companies to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. 1f such indication exists, the said assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for
impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:

(i) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

(ii)in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, mdcpnndem cash
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use,

M Chartered

L Accountanis &
& &
UG




Kakinada SEZ Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the
discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the company
suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset),

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets,

If recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, such deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss
and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced 10 its recoverable amount,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased catrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
standalone financial statements,

Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet.

m. R etirement and other employee benefits
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Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund are defined
contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other t han the contribution payable. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund as
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme
for service received before the balance sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date,

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.
The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the standalone balance sheet, to the extent it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method using actuarial valuation to be carried out at each balance sheet date

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis,

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the netd efined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the standalone balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings
through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense or income.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and
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financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are
different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In case of interest free or concession
loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures, the excess of
the acteal amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value is accounted as an equity investment.

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures are measured at
cost less impairment.

Investment in preference shares/ debentures of the subsidiaries are treated as equity instruments if the
Same are convertible into equity shares or are redeemable out of the proceeds of equity instruments
issued for the purpose of redemption of such investments. Investment in preference shares/ debentures
not meeting the aforesaid conditions are classified as debt instruments at amortised cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument
and of allocating interest income ot expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period,

(2) Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial ussets measured at fair valuc

Financial assets are measured at fair valye through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in
subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments, Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the
time of initial recognition of such equity investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value theough other comprehensive income is
carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss,

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
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Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised
cost and fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

The company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model,
which involves use of provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as
permitted under Ind AS [09 — Impairment loss on investments.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss
allowance equal fo twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition
under Ind AS 109,

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received,

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

(b) Financial liabilitics and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument,

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs,

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is
significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafis and issued debt are initially measured at fair value
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of
borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.
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For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracls

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantinlly modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss,

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company's cash management,

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final
dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in the currencies other than the Company’s
functional curvency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in the foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items recognised
in the financial statements before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period in
respect of which the Company has elected to recognise such exchange differences in equity or as part
of cost of assets as allowed under Ind AS 101-“First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard”
are recognised directly in equity or added/ deducted to/ from the cost of assets as the case may be.
Such exchange differences recognised in equity or as part of cost of assets is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis,

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or settlement of other monetary items are included
in the statement of profit and loss for the period.

Corporate social responsibility (*CSR’) expenditure

The Company charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of profit and loss.
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Note.4
Investment Property { as at 31.-March-2018)

Amt In Rs.
Particulors Land Bulldings Total
Gross Carrying Arnount
As at April 01, 2016 - . .
Additions during the year 1,05.63,577 12,86,53,304 13,93,17,481
Expenses capitatised during the yenr - -
Impaiement {oss -
Dispasals . -
As ot March 31,2017 1,06,63,577 12,86,53,904 13,92,17,481
Acquisitions during the year 89,51875 89,51,875
Expenses capitalised during the year - :
Impairment Lass -
Dispasals - -
As at March 31, 2018 1,85,15,452 12,86,53,904 14,81,69,356
Accumutated depreciation
Asat Apeil 012016 -
Charge [or the year - 42.88,463 42,88 453
Disposals - -
As at March 33,2017 . 42,88,463 42,88,463
Charge for t year . 42,97,0480 42,97,043
Disposals -
As ot Macch 31, 2018 - 85,85,503 85,85,503
Net black
As ot March 31, 2017 1,05,63,577 12,43,65,441 13,49,29,018
As at March 31, 2018 1,95,15,452 12,00,68,401 13,95,83,853
Notes:

a] Inlormation regording income and expenditure of Investment property:
Amtin Rs,

Particulurs Ji-Mar 18 31-Mar.17
Rental income derived from investiment propernty 115,591 21120081
Less: Direct opecating expenses (including repairs and majntenance) -
generating reatal fncome
Less: Direct nperating expenses (including repairs and mainienance) -
that did nit generate rental incomwe
Prafit / {loss} arising from investment propertics hefore 2A2,15,551 31120081
depreclation
Less: Depreciaticn for the year 66,34,423 69.54.244
Profit / (foss) arlsing from Investment properties 1,45,81,168 1,41,65,837

b} Minimum Lease Payments recelvable on Investment property leased to tenants under long Yerm non-
cancellable operating leases:

Particulars Ji-Mur-18 31-Mar-17

Within ona year 2,15,81,636 2,11,73,604

Aftar one year but not more than fve years 8,59,82,544 8,58,17,614

More than five yaars 7,34,79,047 7.82,39,015)

Total 18,14,43,227 18,62,30,235
¢} Reconclliation of falr value inRs. Cr

As at Aprid 01, 2016
Fairvalue difference

Purchases during thy yoar 14.98
As at March 31, 2017 14,98
Fale vatua difference .

Purchases during the year 2.01
As at Margh 31, 2018 16,99

d} Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on Investment properties:

Valuation Significant

Range {welghted average
technigue unobservabie Inputs ge fwelg gel

Investment Properties

Mareh 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

The Company's Investment properties consist
of Lands as on 31-March-2018 Is 10.31 Ac { as

@f -Mar-2017 is 5.28 acres) located in village
0‘/@ ; oalapeta of Uppada thhapalh Mandal JGLR {Guide Line sl 360 401 L 0.
7 chandedi® kinada, East Goadavari Rate) method
= Accoun@it ndhapradash These vatuations are

'\ f\\?\w baséd gn valuations performed independent
Crg el
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Note,5
Datalls of Investrment Property under construetion as at 31st March,2018 Amt In Rs,
Particulars ag at March 31, 2018 as at Mareh 31, 2017
Land and Land Related Expenses %,88,66,93,794 5,86,73,45,459
Rehabilitation Expenses 72,76,54,806 72,39,83,130
interest & Finance Charges 12,14,54,97,619 10,10,72,27,538
Rates & Taxes 98,21,574 98,01,045
Consultancy Charges 58,09,78,433 55,11,82,315
I'nfr_a‘stkrgggygngglgpmengfteyell!ng_. ﬂpad ete 23,77,19,645 16,39,78,783
Overhead Cost 1,04,54,02,640 93,86,41,442
{i} 70,63,37,68,611 18,36,21,69,722
Less: Otherincome -
{nterest income on bank deposits -
Interest Receivableloans
Revenue from sale of infirm power
Miscellaneous Intome {net of expenses directly sttributal
(i)
Total - (iii} = {i} - {il} 20,63,37,68,611 18,36,21,69,722
Less  Apportioned over the cost of tangible assets
{iv) . .
Total - {v) = (i) - {iv) 20,63,37,68,611 18,36,21,69,722

a) Disclosure as per Ind AS 23

(3) the amount of borrawing costs capitalised during the period - Rs. 203,47,86,169/-
(b} the capitalisation rate @12.82% is used to determine the amount of barrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

b) Recancifiation of fair value fri Rs, Cr
As at April 01, 2016 2,887.00
Fair value difference 411.78
Purchases during the year 0.22
Transfer lo Invesment property (2.11)
As at March 31, 2017 3,296.89
Fair value difference -

- Purchases during the year 0.05
Transfer to Invesment property {2.01)
As at March 31, 2018 3,294.93

¢) Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment propertles:

Investment Propertles

Valuation technique

Slgnificant
uncbservable inputs

Range (weighted average)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

The Company's investment propertias consist
of Lands as on 31-March-2018 is B229,32 Ac {
ason 31-Mar-2017 is 8233.78 acres) located in
village Ponnada,Ramanakka peta,

Komaragiri Kotha Moolapeta of Uppada
Kothapalli Mandal and Villages Kodhada,
K.Perumallapuram and AV Nagarama of
Thognadi Mandal, Village Bhimavaram (2Ac) ,
Samalkot Mandal ,Near Kakinada, East
h@??qvari District, Andhapradesh. These
m;ﬁs are based on valuations performad

‘fikpenident valuer,

ntants

GLR (Guide Line
Rate) method

il
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d) Details of Charges created on assets
(a} First parf passu charge has been created on fand for the term foan avalled by the Company from IFCI to the exteot of Rs.150 Crores.
(b} First part passu charge has been created on land for the term foan availed by GMR Infrastructuce Limited from UC of India to the extent of 8s.600 Crores.

lc} Subservient charga has been created on land for the Term Loan availed by GMR Infrastructure Limited from ICIC1 Bank Ltd to the extent of 85,1000 Crores.

(d) Subservient charge has been created on land for the Term Loan of Rs. 214 €r and NCDs of Rs. 830 €r cutstanding avalled by GMR Infrastructure Umited
from ICICH Bank Ld.
(e} Subservient charge has bean created on land for the coprorate loan of Ry, 250Cr avalled by GMR Infrastructure Umited from (FCH Ltd

Note: 6
Other Intangibile assets Amt in Rs,
Total

Cost as at Apsll 1, 2016 5,67,209
Additlons during the year .
Disposals -
AsatMarch3g2oly - 5,67,209
Additlons during the year _ S -
Disposals .

_PsatMorch 31,2018 5,67,204

}\ccxl;ruulatud auﬁcrﬁsation
s at Aprll 12016 98,297
Charge for the year 98,297
Disposals ' :
As at March 31,2017 o 1,96,584
Charge for the year 1,98,285
Disposals
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31,2018 3,94,879

Net 8lock B
As ot March 31,2017 S 3,70,615
As at March 31,2018 1,72,438

e
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31,2018

Note,7
Investments

Amtin Rs.

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Non-Current balance

Investmams at Cost

Unquoted Equity Instruments - Subsidiarias

10000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in Kak'nada Gateway Part
Ltd

Current balance

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,060,000

1,00,000

Investments in Mutual Funds

Total

1,00,000

1,00,000

Note.B
Loans

Amtin Rs.

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at Mareh 31,2017

Current Balance of Loans

Loans to Employees

3,753

28,000

Total Current Balance of Loans

3,753

28,000

Total Loans

28,000

Note.9
Other Financial Assets

Amtin Rs.

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Non-current balance of Other Financial Assets

 Security Deposits ~ Unsecured considered good 70,50,159 72,68,050
Q;her Bank depqsits-Re’stricted ~ refer Note (a) 6,70,80,000 6,71,52,349
Unbilled rent ' 23,18,478 26,70,650
Total non-current balances of Other Financial Assets 7,64,58,637 7,70,81,048
Current Balances of Other financial assets o o
Non Trade Receivable 79,951 | 8,126
Unbifledrent 3,52,173 3,52,173
Interest accrued on fixed depoéits ’ 88,253 1,358,711
Total current balances of Other Financial Aszets 5,20,376 4,896,010
Total Other Financial Assats 7,69,79,013 7,75,87,058

A charge has been created over.

a) Deposits of Rs 5.65 Crore (March 31, 2017: Rs. 5.65 Crore) towards DSRA maintained by the Company for loans availed by the Company

from banks and financial institutions

b) Towards margin money for the bank guarantee obtained from Central Bank Of India for submitting to Income tax authorities (0. 92Cr)
¢) Towards margin money for the bank guarsntee obtained from Bank of India for submitting to Mines department for the quarry (0 14 Cr}
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Note. 1D
Other Asseis

Amt in Rs.

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as ot March 31,2017

Non-current balance

Capltal advances (Unseeured, considered good)

Yo related parties 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
To others 94,39,57,901 85,18,07,277
) 1,44,39,57,901 1,45,19,07,277

Oihers
Balance with Statutory /Government authonties 11,41,42,216 8,35,38,404
Income Tax paid under protest (Refer Note (a) below) 5,02,58,819 5,00,10,916
Preliminary expenses not written off - 76,340
B 16},{14,‘01,035 13,36,25,660

Total non-current Other Assets

Current balance
Advances recoverahle In cash ar klnd
Unsecured considered good

1,60,83,58,936

1,58,55,32,937

f!ota! qt‘l‘\gt’cqrrent‘a‘sserts

Total Other Assets

32,45,226 31,64,057
32,845,226 31,64,057
1,61,16,04,162 1,58,86,86,994

{a) The Company has paid Income Tax under Pratest of Rs. 5.02 Crores. Provision has not been made for the same, since the company has
contested the same in an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh. This Rs.5.02 Crores consists of Rs.4.84 Crores for regular
tax assessments and fis. 0.19 Crores for penalty . The appeal is admitted by the Hon'ble High Court and the hearings are in progress.

Note.11
Current ncome Tax

Amtin Rs,

Particulars

asat March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

TDS Receivable 88,78,305 49,64,953
Total 88,78,305 49,64,953
Note.12 Amtin Rs.

Particulars

asat March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Trade Receivables

Re;eivabies 63,900 60,956
Total 63,900 60,956
Current Portion 63,900 60,956

Note.13

Cash and Cash Equivalents Amtin Rs,

Particulars ‘

as at March 31,2018 as st March 81,2017

Cash on hand ’ 25,780 |  ause

Balances with banks in current accounts 60,36,9’7687 34 45 497

Bank Deposq;s ] 23,456 |

Total 50,86,202
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Note.14
Share Cepital

Amt in Rs.

Particuiars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

as at March 31,2017

Number of shares Rs Number of shares Rs
Authorised share capital
as at April 01,2016
- Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 200,600,000 2,000,000.000 200,000,000 2,000,000,000
Increase/ (decrease; during the vear
At 31 March 2017 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000,000
Increase/ {decrease; during the vear - . - -
At 31 March 2018 200,000,000 2,000,000,000 200,000,000 2,000,000,000
issued equity capitat
At 31 March 2017
- Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
beginning of the period 82,708,275 827,082,750 82,708,275 827,082,750
ssued during the period
end of the period 82,708,275 827,082,750 82,708,275 827,082,750
- Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each - Rs.1 Paid up
beginning of the period 112,860,411 112,860,411 112,860,411 112,860,411
issued during the period
At 31 March 2018 112,860,411 112,860,411 112,860,411 112,860,411
Total 195,568,686 939,943,161 195,568,586 935,943,161

a) Terms and rights attached with the Shares: The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied Lo one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receve remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts.

b) Shares heid by holding/ ultimafe holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates: Amtin Rs.
as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2017 as at March 31,2017

Particulars fumber of shares Rs Number of shares Rs
4.71,81.220 {31st March'16: 4,21 81,220} Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each 42,184,220 421,812,200 42,181,220 421,812,200
5,75,58,810 (315t March'16: 5,75,58,810} Equity Shares of Re.1
each 57,558,810 57,558,810 57,558,810 57,558,810
Total 479,371,010 479,371,010

¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

as at March 31,2017

Particulars Number of shares % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
Equity Shares - Face Value Rs. 10 each paid up Rs. 10:
GMR SE7 & Port Holdings £ Ltd., and ds nominees A2.181,22C 51.00% 42,181,220 51.00%
Kakinada infrastructure Holdings Private Limiteg 34,700,008 41.95% 34,700,000 41.85%
Veda Infra-Projects (india} Private Limited 5,300,000 6.43% 5,300,000 5.41%
Equity Shares - Face Value Rs. 10 each paid up Rs. 11
GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Private Limited $7.558,810 51.00% 57,558,810 51.00%
Kakinada infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 31,300,000 37 73% 31,300,000 27 73%
Veda Infra-Projects (indiaj Private Limited 23,450,000 0.78% 23,450,000 30.78%

112,308,810

Note.15
Other Equity Amtin Rs,
Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 33,2017

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opering (99,553,869} {42,363,767}
During the period (44,638,071} (57,190,103}
Total {144,191,841) (89,553,869}
Equity contribution from parents - Related party loan

Opening 1,562,768 1,562,768
During the period

Total 1,562,768 1,562,768
Total {142,629,173) (97,991,101}




Note.16

Borrowings Amtin Rs,
Particulars asat March 31,2018 3s st March 31,2017

Non Current 8alances Current Maturities Hon Current Balances Current Maturities
Term loans
{ndian tupee term loan from banks {secured) . G} - 41,59,15,482
Indian rupee term loan from Fls {secured} 18,74,00,431 74,85 89,386 9'3,59‘89,8 19 55,87,67,273
Loans from related partles
Loan from a group company (untecured) 893,77,44,928 6,61,15,23,356 12,34,28,18,492 1,40,29,12,603
Secutity deposit from vendors ) 18,98,741 - 16,59,379 -
Total 9,12,70,44,100 7,36,01,12,744 13,28,04,67,8%0 2,37,85,95,358

Current maturities of longierm debt had bean included under Othar Financial Llabilities - Nate No 18

{a) Secured Loan Fram Banks:

Tarm Loan from ICICH Bank { Secured ) of Rs. 0| Mar 31,2017: Rs 41 59 Crf ts secured by part passu first charge on the Immovable Properties | ¢ Land and irst ranking extlusive
charge aver Debt Service Reserve Account maintained with ICIT) Bank. Further, secured by an Iirevocable and unconditions! guarantee given by GMR Infrastructure Ltd The loan
is repayable In 12 equal quarterly instaliments stasting from 27th October 2014 {The end of 27 months from the 13t drawdown date) and carries an Interest rate of 9.00% g2
plus spread of 5,505 p.a | e etfective rate of 14 50% p a payable monthly The Tetra Loan has been fully repaid duting the month of Septamber’ 2017

Term Loan from [FCH Limited {Secured) of Ry 93 60 Cr {Mar 31, 2017 Rs.149 58 Cr} 15 secured by pan passu first charge aa Land to the extent of 8,236.50 Acres along with
ascrow of recaivables from land leasing of 916 Acres under Phase-| and lien on FD of Rs. § 65 Cr with State Bank of India towards service of principte and Interest obligation
falling due la next 3 months Futther, secured by an ierevocable and unconditional guarantee given by GMR Infrastructure Ltd The loan is repayable In 8 equst quartedy
instaliments starting from 30th September 2017 { The end of 27 months from the 18t drawdown date ) and carries an interast rate of 10 20% p a plus spread of 3.00% pa Le.
effective rate of 13.20% pa payable monthly Four Quasterly installmants are falling due for repayment within the next twelve months, hencs an amount of Ks.74.86 Cr is
categatiied as current maturities of borrowings under Note 18

{b} Unsecurad Loans from Related Parties:
(i)inter corporate Loans of 85.0 { 31Mar'17: Rs 37 53Cr ) from GMR Infrastructure Ltd aten interest rate of 14.75% pavable on Quely basis, repaid during the period

(it} Intereorporate Loans of Rs. 979 68 Crs (31Mar'17. 1303.75 € ) from GMR Infeastructure Ltd at an interest rate of 12 25% payable on Qurly basls, repayatle at the end of the
3rd Year (repayment starting feom June’ 2018}, of which Rs. S02.80 Crs s falling due for repayment wthin the next twelve months benca it is categorlzed 3s current matusities of
boriowings under Note 18

{ik} interzorporate Loans of Rs. 14.00 Crs { 33 Mar 17: Rs. 14.00 Cr) from GMR Highways Umited at an Interest rate of 12.25% p.a., payable on gtsly basis, repayabla in 3 years
{i.e. repayment starting from Mac 2019) of whch Rs. 5 Crs s fating due for repayment within the next twelve manths hence it is categorized as current maturit'es of boriowings
under Nate 18

{iv) Intercorporate Loans of Rs. 158 50 Crs [ 31 Mac'7 Rs 0) from GMR Jighways Limited at an intersst rate of 12 508 p a,, payable on yearly besis, repayable in 3 years (ie
repayment starting from June” 2020} and categorized as non-current maturities of borrowings under Note 16

v) tntercorporate Loan of B 4 29 Grs { 31 Mar’17 Rs 4.29) from Kakinada Refinery and Petrochermicals Private Limited 3t an interest rate of 12.25% p.a., payable on gtrly basis,
repayable end of 3rd year {repayrent starting from Oct 2019 and categonzed as non-surrent maturities of borcowings under Note.16

vl) tatercorparate Losn of Rs 15 00 Crs { 31 Mar't7 Rs, 15 Crs) from GMR Genceo Assats Limited at an foterest rate of 12.28% p a., payable on girly basis, regayable end af 3d
year (repayment stacting front Sep' 2019 and categarized as non-cutrent maturities af borrowings under Nota.16

vil] Intercorporate Loan of Rs 25 10 Crs { 31 Mar'?. Ry, 0) from GMR Aerostructures Services Limited at an interest rate of 12.25% g a, pavable on Yanual basis, repayable end
of 5th year (repayment stanting from June' 2022) and categorized as non-cureent maturities of borrowings under Note 16

viil] Intestorporate Loan of Rs 125.00 Crs { 31 Mar17: Rs, 0) from GMR Generation Assats Limited at an interest tate of 12 50% p a., payable alang with princigal, repayable end
of 3rd year {repayment starting from fune® 2020 and categorlted as non-current matuiities of horrowings usder Note. 16

Ix} ntercarparate Loan of Rs 7500 Crs | 31 Mar'17: Rs 0} from Bhruvi Securitles Private Limited at an interest rate of 12.25% p.2, payable on yanual basls, repayable end of 3rd
year [repayment starting from June' 2020) and categorized as non-currant maturities of borrowings under Note 16

%} Intarcorporate Loon of Rs 15000 Crs { 31 Mar't7: R 0} from GMR SE2 & Port Holdings Limited at interest [ree loan, repayable end of 11th month and categorized os current
maturities of horrowings vader Note 18

1l) Intercorporate Loan of Rs 500 Crs { 31 Mar'17/. Rs. 0) from Raxa Secunty Services Limited at an Interest rate of 12.50% payahle on yanual basts, repayable end of 3rd year
and categorized 3s non-current rasturities of barrowings under Note.16

xif) Intercorporate Loan of Re. 3 35 Crs { 31 Mar'17: Ry 0] from Raxa Security Services Limitad at an interest rate of 12 50% payabie on yanval bagls, repaysble on 315t March,
2018 and categorized as curtent maturities of barrowings under Note.18




Note.17
Provisions

Amt in Rs,

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Non-current Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity 52,556,505 14,34,415
Provision for leave benefits 1,20,11,815 1,03,56,027
Total non-current provisions 1,72,68,320 1,17,90,442
Current Provlsions B -
Provision for employee beneflts
Provision for leave benefits 6,22,272 5,18,065
. Provision for other employee benefits 79,91,129 90,54,639
Total ‘cgr‘rent’provision‘s 86,138,401 85,72,704
Total provisions 2,58,81,722 2,13,63,146
Nate.18
Other Financial Liabilities AmtinRs,
Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Other financial liahilities at amortised cost

Current rmaturities of Iong~term borrowmgs

LA | 2378595358

Interestﬁacq’ued but notdue on borrpwmgs ’ 71&38,048 97,74,543

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1066932350 | 1603698562

 Security deposit from vendors 16371869 |  1,2862,140

Nontrade payable 3,20,90,29,508 2,03,87,97,414

Total 11,65,95,54,518 6,04,37,28,017
Note.19

Other Liabilities Amt in Rs,

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Nen- -Current balance
Defferred revenue

) Secunty deposlt from chent

balance

e erred reve nue
TDS Payable
Other Payables

Total

12370442 29,78,331
85,00,00,000 .
86,23,70,442 29,78,331

smen| e
25080204 | 4805914
44,45,209 39,93,591
3,01,20,995 91,91,816

§9,24,95,437 121,70,147
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Note.20
Revenue from operations

AmtinRs,

Particulars

as at March 31,2018

as at March 31,2017

Operating Income

{ncome from Lease 2,12,15,591 2,11,20,081
Totat 2,12,15,591 2,11,20,081
Note,23
Revenue from Other Income Amtin Rs,
Particulars
as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2017
Other Income
Income from Mutual Funds tnvestment 15,95,411 16,50,935.47
th;vyinding‘ ”(;friVryxrt'gvrkgs:tfm;”Security Deposits 1,52,949 1,83,053.00
Tol - 17,48,360 18,33,988
Note.22
Employee Benefit expenses Amtin Rs,
Particulars
as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2017
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,11,09,810 2,12,47,049
Contribution to provident and other funds 13,80,005 15,22,916
Grawityewpenses 312093) 338,602
~ Staff welfare expenses 1,‘5‘3;082\/ - 2,37,782
Total - 2,29,54,891 2,33,46,350
Note.23
Depreciation Amt in Rs.
Particulars
as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2017
Depreciation
On Bulldings 42,897,000 42,88,464
On Office Equipment 5,01,049 6,25,968
On Electrical Equipments 18,36,334 20,39,812
66,34,423 69,54,244
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Note.z4

Other Expenses At in Rs,
Particulars

as at March 31,2018 as at March 31,2017
Expanses

Auditors féesq

Statutary Auditor's Remuneration

2,51,250 2,51,250
Reimbursement-Expenses-Statutory Auditor - Fares 59,018 T 53,092-
Tax-Fringe Benefit Tax - 27,932
Business Promotion Expenses 7 41,27,501  36,91,669
Book & Periodicals 57,354 87,199
Advertiseni’en't Ex‘bénsesp 66,674 6,12,475
Mambership Fee ‘ 70,400 1,35,087
Semi‘hars &ktoynfé're’nce ‘ 4,62,é37 6,05,398
Sitting fees T 1,85,300 | 3,61,800
Rates & Taxes & otherexp. 91,720 | 26,33,508
Board Meeting - Other Exps T . 20,100
Community services 49,36,940 1,05,50,818
TravelExpensas 29,26074 | 47,27,355
Co'mmunication‘ ‘‘‘‘‘ ‘ ,‘80,573 ) 1,08,405
Consultancy o ' - ~9,70,663 3,76,875_
Office Maintenance h 8,05,312 418,859
Printing and Sta‘tiqne‘ry / 28,407 87,823
Yool 1,51,19,423 2,47,49,650
Note.25
Finance Cost Arnt in Rs.

Particulars

as at March 33,2018

as at March 31,2017

Finance Cost
tnterest & Finance Charges

2,14,38,381

2,52,46,083

£,14,38,381

2,52,46,083
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED

Cammitments and Contingenties

I, Leases .
Gperating lease: Company as lessee

The company has entered into commercial leases on certain motar vehicles , Office premises and items of machinery, These leases have an
average life of between three and five years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the

company by entering into these leases.

Amtin Rs.
Lease rental charged to CWIP 31-Mar-18 3. Mar-17
97,164,113 1,23,48,954
Lease rentals under cancellable leases and non-cancellable leases
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as Amtin Rs
follows;
31-Mar.-18 31-Mar-17
Within one year 25,00,000 25,00,000
After one year but not more than five years 75,00,000 1,00,00,000
Mare than five years - -
Tatal 1,00,00,000 1,25,00,000
il. Contingent Liabilities
Clalms made against the company not acknowledged as debts
Amtin Rs.
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Incoma Tax D d f)
ncome Tax Demand from the Department under the Income Tax 8,12,97,839 8,00,58,322
Act, 1961
8,12,97 839 8,00,58,322
1ll. Commitments Amtin Rs.
31-Mar-18 3i-Mar17
a.Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on
4,624 13,33,47,113
Capital Account and not provided for {Net of Advances) 62421 3

The Company is in the process of acquiring Land from Gavernment of Andhra Pradesh/APIC. Extent of fand handed over to the company
through this process is 1879.51 Acres, of which agreement of sale is already entered with APIC for 1563,22 Acres on 3rd Nov'2015 and
registered.

Sundry Creditors includes Rs NIL {Previous Year Rs. NIL) pertaining to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings {5S1) to the extent such parties have
been identified from the available information/documents. There are no 55} units to whom the company owes a sum exceeding Rs 1,00 Lakhs
and outstanding for more than 30 days {but not over due} as at 315t March 2018,

There are no Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st
march 2018. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have heen identified on the basis of information available with the Company

The Company is in the process of acquiring land for implementing 3 Multi Product Special Economic Zone within the meaning of Spacial
Economic Zone Act 2005. The Company has obtained an initial Notification from the Ministry of Commerce, Governmant of Ind:a vide
Notification No. 635(€} dated 23rd April 2007 for an extent of 1035.6688 hectares, the formal approval for the same is initially given for 3 years
from June 2006. The said formal approval is extended thl August 2016. The tompany has obtained further notification from Government of
India vide Notification No. 342(E) dated 6th February'2013 for an extent of 1013.64 hectares and the forrmal approval has been given Initlally
for 3 years from February 2012 ,which on application by the company has been extended further upto February 2016 The companiy's
proposal for merger of both approvals is approved by Ministry of Commerce Jn Dec' 2015, subsequently in January, 2016, the company's first
SEZ client started operations and the SEZ became operational,hence extension of farmal approval is no longer required. Out of 2049.3088
hectares land covered in the existing notification, the company applied for de-notification of 170,0015 hectares during the year.aadig
approval from Ministry of commerce and industry. Subsequent to denotification as stated above, 1879.3073 hectares of land S
SEZ notified area.
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Land acquisition for SEZ Project comprises direct purchases, Land acquired from APUC, and Land awarded by Government of Andhra Pradesh
{GOAP) through naotification, The Land acquired through awards by GOAP includes, payment towards structures, standing crops, solatium and
interest from the date of notification till the date of award. All the above costs are treated as part of land acquisition cast

In respect of ongoing land acquisition process, there are claims of different types pending before various judicial forums such as, disputes
between claimants, or writ petitions filed against praperty acquisitions of land etc. As these cases are subject to judicial verdicts which are
pending, the final impact if any on financial statements of company towards the ongoing project execution is not determinable as on the date
of Balance Sheat.

Further to the acquisition of land for developmant of Special Economic Zones the company has initiated various rehabilitation and
resettlement initiatives to relocate the inhabitants residing in the land acquired. The amount of expenditure incurred by the
company towards rehabilitation and resettlement initiatives amounting fo Rs. 72,76,54,906/-{31st March 2017: Rs.72,39,93,130/-
} is treated as part of land acquisition cost and Is grouped along with capital work-in-progress. The campany had estimated that
additional cost of Rs.41.03 Crores is likely to be Incurred towards rehabilitation and resettlernent as required under Ind AS 37, na
provision has been made in this regard, as the negotiations with the benefidaries towards obtaining possession of land
necessitating the rehabilitation is still golng on and once the patential obligation is materialized, the same will be provided for.

The company incutred a sum of Rs.226.42 Cr (Previous Year Rs, 190.23 Cr } towards expenditure in respect of ongoing 5€Z project under
sxecution by the company. This expenditure is directly connected with land acquisitions which is the primary asset of the project. Other
expenditure incurred which Is not directly connected with the ongoing land acquisitions is treated as pecdod cost and charged off to the profit
and loss account.

The expenditure during the previous yesr in ruspuct of the project includes Rs.314,89,04,000/- towards non-prejudicial additional
compensation for Land owners and farmers announced by special officer for land acquisition 10 hasten the proposed project activitias, this is
in addition to the statutory compensation already paid. An amount of Rs. 134,22,91,405/- has been paid by the company in this regard, For the
remaining amount of Rs, 180,66,12,595/ provision is shown in non - trade payables (Note 18 - Other Financial Liabilities ).

The following Is the computation of Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Earnings per share {'EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Partly paid equity shares are treated as 3 fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully pald equity share during the
reparting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares} that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders {after adjusting for interest on the
convertible securities) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the welghted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

Amtin Rs.

Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar.17
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders (4,31,83,267) {5,73,42,257)
9,39,94,316 9,39,94,316

Welghted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share {Basic)

Earning Per Share (Basic) {Rs) {0.46) {061}

Face value per share (Rs} 10 10
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KAKINADA SEZ LIMITED

Commitments and Contingencies
I Leases

Oparating lease: Company as lessea

The company has entered Inta commercial leases on certain motor vehicles, Offce premises and :tems of machinery, These leases have an average
life of between three and five years with no renewal aption inc'uded in the cantracts, There are no restrictions placed upon the company by entering

Into these leases.

Arntin Rs
Lease rental charged to CWIP 31-Mar18 31-Mar-1?
97,14,113 1,23,48,954
Lease rentals under cancellab'e leases and non- carcaliable leases
Future minimum rentals payable under non-canceliable operating leases are as Amtin Rs
follows:
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Within one year 25.00,000 25,00,000
After one year but not more than five years 78,00,000 1,00,00,000
Morea than five years - -
Total 1,00,00,000 1,25,00,000
IL. Contingent tiabilities
Claims made agsinst the company not acknowledged as debts
Amtin Rs
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-37
| o] B Ine
ncome Tax Demand from the Departmant under the Incame Tax 8,12,97,830 8,00,58,322
Act, 1961
8,12,97,839 8,00,58,322
iH, Commitments Amtin Rs
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
a.Estimated amount of Contracts remalning to be executed on
13,33,47,113
Capital Account and not provided for {Net of Advances) 462421 3471

The Company Is in the process of acquiring Land from Govzrnment of Andhra Pradesh/APIC Extent of land handed over ta the company through this
process Is 1879.51 Acres. of which agreement of sale is already entered with APIC for 1563.22 Acres on 3rd Nov'2015 and registered,

Sundey Creditors includes Rs NIL (Pravious Year Rs, NIL) pertaining to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings {S51} to the extent such parties have been
identified from the available information/dacuments, There are no S5 units to whom the company owes 2 sum exceeding 85 1.00 Lakhs and
outstanding for sore than 30 days (but not aver due) as at 31st March 2018.

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31st march
2018. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developraent Act, 2006 has been determined to
the extent such partles have been Identified on the basis of information avallab'e with the Company.

The Company Is In the proess of acquiring land for implamenting a Mult Product Special Economic Zone with'n the meaning of Special Economic
Zong Act 2005, The Company has obtained an initial Notif-cation from the Ministry of Commerce, Government of India vide Notification No_ 635{E}
dated 23rd April 2007 for an extent of 1035.6688 hectaras, the formal approval for the same Is inltially given for 3 years from June 2006 The sald
formal approval is extended till August 2016 The company has obtained further notification from Government of India vide Netification No. 342(€)
dated 6th February'2013 for an extent of 1013 64 hectares and the formal approaval has been given initially for 3 years from February 2012 ,which on
application by the company has been extended further upte Februacy 2016 The companiy’s proposal for merger of both approvals Is approved by
Ministry of Commerce in Des' 2018, subsequently in January,2016, the company's first SEZ client started operations and thoe SEZ became
operational,hence extension of formal approval is no longer required. Out of 20493088 hectares land covered In the existing notification, the
company applied for de-notificatien of 1700018 hectares during the year and got the approval from Ministry of commerce asd industry Subseguent
to denatification as stated above, 1879.3073 hectares of Jand is coverad under SEZ notified area.

Land acquisition for SEZ Profect comprises diract purchases, Land acquired from APKC, and Land awarded by Governmant of Andhra Pradesh {GOAP)
thraugh notification. The Land acquired through awards by GOAP includes, paymant towards structures, standing crops, sofatium and interest from
the date of notification till the date of award Al the above costs are treated as port of land acquisition cost

Int respecLof ongoing land acqulsition process, there are claims of dilferent types pending before varlous judicial forums such as, disputas begiegs
chaim ﬁ/tg?wd‘h @ritspetitions filed against property acquisitions of land ete. As theze rases are subject to judicial verd:cts which are pendmg‘
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Further to the acquisition of land for development of Special Econamic Zones the company has initlated various rehabiitation and
resettlermnent initiatives to refocate the inhabitants residing in the land acquired The amount of expenditure incurred by the company
towards rehabilitation and resettlement initiatives amounting to Rs. 72,75,54,906/-(31st March 2017: Rs.72,39,93,130/+) is treated as
part of land acquisition cost and is grouped along with capital work-in-progress. The company had estimated that additional cost of
Rs.41.03 Crores is likely to be incurrad towards rehabilitation and resettlement as required under fnd AS 37, no provision has been made
in this regard, as the negotiations with the beneficiaries towards obtaining possession of land necessitating the rehabilitation is still going
an and once the potential obligation is materlalized, the same will be provided for.

The company incurred a sum of Rs.226.42 Cr (Frevious Year Rs 190.23 Cr ) towards expenditure in respect of ongoing SEZ projact under execution by
the company. This expenditure is directly connected with land acquisitions which is the primary asset of the project Other expénditure Incurced which
Is not directly connected with the ongeing fand acquisitions is treated as perlod cost and charged off to the profit and Inss account.

The expenditure during the previous year in respect of the project Includes R35.314,89,04,000/ towards non-prejuticial additional conpensation for
Land owners and fatmers sanounced by special officer for land acquisition to hasten the proposed project activities, this is In addition to the statutory
compensation already paid. An amount of Rs. 134,22,81,405/- has been pald by the company in this cegard For the remaining amount of Rs
180,66,12,585/- provision Is shown in non - trade payables {Note 18 « Other Financial Liabilities |

The following is the computation of Earnings Par Share {EPS):

Earnings per share {'EPS')

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit/ loss for the year attributable te aquity shareholders of the parent by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the
extant that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
ctorresponding change In resources.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders (after adjusting for Intarast on the
convertible securities) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity sharas into equity shares.

Amt In Rs.
Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Profit/{Loss} atributable to equity holders {4,31,83,267) {5.73,42,257}
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share (Basic) 9,39,94.316 9,39,94,316
Earning Per Share {Basic) {Rs) {0.48) {0.81)
Face value per share (Rs} 10 10
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Note36
Related Party Transactions

{A) Ust ol Related Party with whom transactions has taken place

Disclosures in respect of related parties as defined in Ind AS 24, with whom transactions have taken place dusing the year, are given

List of Related Parties

Name of the Company

Nature of Refationship

GMR Enterprises Pvt. Ltd {GEPL)

Ultimate Holding Company

GVIR SEZ and Port Holding Ltd {GSPHL)

Holding Company

GMH Infrastructure Limited (GIt]

Holding Company's Holding Company

GMR Energy Limited (GEL)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Kakinada Energy Pyt Ltd (GKEPL)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Krishnagit SIR Limited {GKSL)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Ltd. {GHIAL)

Fellow Substdiary

GMR Hospitality & Retail Lid {GHAL)

Fellow Subsidlary

GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL)

Fallow Subsidiary

Raxa Securlty Services Limited [RAXA)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Varalasml Foundation {GVF)

Group Company

GMR Airpart Developers Umited {GADL)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Highways Lid (GHL)

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Vemaglri Power Generation Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Kakinada Gateway Port Limited

Wholly awned Subsidiary

GhAR Kamalanga Energy Lirited {GKEL)

Fellow Subsidiary af Holding Company {GIL)

GMR Chattishgarh Energy Lid (GCEL)

Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company {GIL)

GMR Ulundurpet Expressways Pvt Ltd {GUEPL)

fellow subsidiary of Holding Company (611}

G Hyderabad Vijayawada Exptess Ways Pyt Ltd {GHVEPL)

Fellow Substidiary of Halding Company {GIL)

GMR Gujarst Solar Pawer Private LT0 (GGSPPL

Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company {(GIL)

GMR Family Fund Trust {GFFT)

Enterprise where key managerial personnel and their relatives exercise

Dhruvi Sacuritias Pyt Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Generation Assats Ltd

Fellow Subsidlary

GMR Aerostructures Services Limited

Fallow Subsidiary

GMR Genco Assets Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Oelhi International Airpart byt Ltd

Fallow Subsidiary

GMR Coastal Enargy Pyt Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary

Kakinada Infrastructure Holdings Put, Ltd {KIHPL)

Significant influence

Padma Priya Properties Put Lid

Fellow Subsidiary

GMR Energy Trading Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Datails relating ta Key Manager(al Persanael

1} Mr. € R M Naidu, Manager

2] M, Srinivasa Rao Sury, CFO

3] Mr. G V Suresh Kumar, Company Secratary

Salaries of Key Managerlal Personnel

Amountin Rs

Mr. Srinivass fao Mr.CRM Mr. G V Surash
Sl.No Particutars of Remunaration Naldu, Kumar, Company Total
Sury, CFO
Manager Secretary

{a) short-term employee benefits 34,486,546 28,256,122 21,568,577 84,30,245
{b} post-emplayment benefits - . . .
(¢} other long-term henelits; - g - -
{d} termination bienafits; 261,120 2,12,670 1,67,186 640,975
{e} share-based payment. . . o -

Total 37,07 .685 30,37,792 23,25,763 90,71,220

1. Transactions with Related Partles Amtin fls.
Sl No, Particulars 2017-2018 2016.2017
A} Transactions during the year
1 tnan frorn Group companles
GMA Infrastructure Limited 92,93,90,000 4,49,15,00,000
GMR Highways Limited 1,58,50,00,000 9,00.00,000
Padma Priva Properties Pyt Ltd . 9,46,06,494
Kakinada Refinery & Petrachemicals Pvt Ud 4,29,34,359
MNamitha Real Estates Pyt Lid . 50,00,000
GMR Genco Assets Limited 15,00,00,000 -
GMR Aerostructures Services Limited 25,16,00,000 -
GMR Generation Assets Ltd 1,25,00,00,000
Dhruvi Securities Pvt Umited 75,00,00,000 -
GMR SEZ and Port Holdings Ltd 1,50,00,00,000 -
Raxa Security Services Limited 8,35,00,000 -
GMR SEZ and Port Holding Put. Lid 1,50,00,00,000
2 Loan repaid to group companies

Padma Priya Properties Pvt Ltd . 14,39,55.535
Namitha Real Estates Pvt Ltd . 50,00,000
GMR (nfrastructure Limited 4,54,53,52,809 2,86,50,00,000
Security Charges
Raxa Security Services Limited 1,60,96,363 1,55,79,056
interest on group company loans
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B)

Ohruvi Securities Pyt Ltd
GM#t Infrastructure Umited
GMR Highways Umited
Padma Priya Properties Pvt Ltd
GMR Genco Assats Lmited
Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pyt Lid
Nanitha Real Estates Pyt Ltd
GMR Aerostructures Services Limited
GMR Generation Assats Ltd
Raxa Securlty Services Umited
GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited
GMR Energy Trading Umitad
Rant
GMR Hyderabad International Airpart Ltd
Bus Hire, Electricity & IT & Communication Charges
GMR Hyderabad (ntecnational Airpart L
Boarding & Lodging
GMR Hospitality & Retall Ltd {GHRL)
Relmbursement of Expenses ta
GMR Enterprises Put. Ltd. {GEPL)
GMR Varalaxmi Foundation
GMR Infrastructure Limited
GMR Krishnagli SEZ Umited
Delhi internationat Airport Limited
GMR Alrport Developers Private Limited
ANAHATA CREATIONS LLP
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Ld
GMR Energy Umitad
Relmbursement of Expenses by
- GMR Energy Limited
- GMR Vemaglri Power Generation Umited
- Kakinda Gateway Port Umited
-GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada express way Pvt Ltd
Asset furchase from
- GMR Hyderabad International Alrport Ltd
- GMR Energy Umited
Cutstanding balances at the Perlod Ended
Issued Capital
- GMIR $EZ and Port Holding Ltd
Land Aggregation & Materlal Supply
+ GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Loan from Group companies
-GMR Infrastructure Umited
-GMR Highways Limlied
GMH Genco Assets Limited
Kakinada Refinary & Petrochemleals Pvt Lid
GMR Aerostruttures Services Limited
GMR Generation Assets Ltd
Dhruvi Securities Pyt Uimited
GMR S£Z and Port Holdings Lid
- Raxa Security Services Limited
Creditars/Payable
-GMR Infrastructure Uimited
- GMR Hyderabad International Alrport Ltd
- GMR Krishnaghl S€2 Limited
- Delhi International Alrport Limited
- Raxa Security Services Limited
+ GMR Varalaxmi Foundation
+ GMR Highways Umited
- GMR Enterprises Pyt Ltd
- GMR AIRPORT DEVELOPERS LIMITED
- GMR Genco Assats Limited
- Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pt (td
GMR Aerostructures Services Limited
GMR Generation Assets Lid
Ohruvi Securities Pvt Limited
Raxa Security Services Limited
GMR Energy Tradiag Limited
Security Deposit Payahle
- GMR Energy Trading Limited
Oebitors/Receivable
-GMR Infrastructure Limitad
-GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada express way Pyt Ltd
Security Deposit receivable
- Raxa Secuiity Services Umited

6,26,09,247
1,33,79,39,859
16,72,28,767
1,83,75,000
52,59,459

2,42,36,138
11,79,74,452
25,43,664
12,23,78,000
27,68,836

30,14,083
14,93,268
4,27951

1,000
50,96,646
2,11,08,940
75,803
5,59,035
23,96,943

27,885

4,052

2,70,000

£0,00,00,000

9,79,68,33,928
1,72,50,00,000
15,00,00,000
4,29,34,359
25,10,00,000
1,25,00,00,000
75,00,00,000
1,50,00,00,000
8,35,00,000

67,29,64,067
39,04,222

41,872,228
1,52,07,49,217
1,120
39,90,970
2,24,63,815
49,38,183
2,18,12,525
11,67,38,014
5,63,48,322
25,18,227
24,91,952

85,00,00,000

28,499,648
4,052

42,00,000

1,52,98,52,560
1,69,98,373
71,158,410
65,84,795
24,49,611
2,03,048

23,847,807
19,795,808
60,707

2,108
1,07,27,109
2,85,95,467

3,34,257
5,96,420
54,69,746
55,550
98,877
1,43,750

{1,25,625)
{64,717
{7,720}

78,364

47,93,71,010

§0,00,00,000

13,41,27,96,736
14,00,00,000
15,010,00,000
4,28,34,359

1,58,11,64,038
33,18,877
3,34,257
12,83,08%
13,31,051
26,68,619
1,70,14,075
1,050
31,13,2a2
$9,26,315%
22,304,650

42,00,000

Securities Providad to Group Companies




5 Na. Counter Party Graup Company Code No Nature of Transaction
Security provided by way of Parl passu First charge on the Jand of Kakinada
1 GMR Infastratture Umited a3 L] SEZ Lid for the Term loan avaled by them from LIC of india to the exteny of
Rs. 600 Cr
Security provided by way of Subservient tharge on the land of Kakinada 5¢2
2 GMR Infastructure timited 5100 Ltd for the Term Loan availed by them from {CICH Bank to the extent of Rs,
1000 Cr
Security provided by way of Subservient charge on the fand of Kakinada SEZ
3 GMR Infastructure Limited a1 Ltd against the NCDs of GIL and Term Loan availed by GIL fram ICICH Bank 1o
the extent of As. 1044 Cr.
Security provided by way of Subservient charge on the land of Kakinada sz
4 GMR Infastructure Limited T61C0 Ltd against the carporate loan svalled by GIL from IFCI Umited to the extent
of As.250Cr.
[s] Transactlans with Group Companies absarbed into Invastment Property Under Davelopment
5l No. Countar Party Graup Comapany Nature ofTrapsaction 2017-2048 20162017
1 GMR (nfrastructure Limited Share of carporate Exp 2,11,08,940 2,85,95,967
GMR Krishnagirf SEZ Ltd 5GA - Infand Trave! - Other Expenses 75,803 -
3 GMR Hyderabad Imternatiznal Airport Limitad Varluus Expenses 45,35,236 44,26,093
4 GMR Airport Deve'opers Umited SGA-SalariesRAllcwances-Variable Pay 23,96,943 54,69,746
5 |GMR SEZ & PORT HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIM Finance Charges-Upfront fees | 12,23.78,000 -
[ GMR Hospatality & Retad Lid SGA - Inland Travel - Other £xponses 2,24,050 13,027
? Raxa Security Services Limited Security Chacges 1,60,96,363 1,55,79,056
8 OELHIINTERNATIONAL AIRPORY PVT LTa Travel expenses of Mr.Prasanna Sir 5,59,035 5,96,420
21 IGMR Energy Trading Limited Interest on Loan Security Depaosit 27,68,836 -
9 |GMR Energy Limited SGA-Consultancy Charges - Others . 11,25,625}
10 JGMA Family Fund Trust Rent & Ma ntalnance - 1,91,54,671
11 JGMR Infrastructure Limited Interest on Loan 1,33,79,39,859 1,52,98,52,560
12 GMR Highways Ltd intecest an Loan 16,72,28,767 1,69,98,972
13 {Padmapriya Properties Pyt Lid Interest on Loan - 71,18,410
14 |Namitha Real Estates Pvt Ltd Interest on Loan - 2,03,018
15 |GMR Genro Assets Limitad Interest on Loan 1,83,75,000 65,84,795
16 |Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pvt Ltd interest on Loan 52,59,459 24,49,611
17 |GMR Aerostructures Sarvices Limited Interest on Loan 2,42,36,138 .
18 |GMR Generation Assets Ltd Interest on Loan 11,78,79,452 .
19 Dhruvi Securities Private Limited (DSPL) Interest on Loan 6,26,09,247 -
20 Raxa Security Services Umited Interest on Loan 25,43,664 -
Total 1,90,63,14,832 1,63,69,16,751
D) Transactlons with Group Companies asorbed Into PRI
Sl No. Counter Party Group Company Nature of Transaction 2017-2018 2016-2017
1 GMR Hospatality & Retait Limited SGA - Inland Travel - Other Expensas 2,03,861 47,680
2 GMR Varalaxmi Foundation CSW Expensas 50,896,646 1,07,27,10%
3 GMR Krishnagirl SEZ {xd SGA - Inland Travel - Other Expenses : 3,34,257
4 GMR Enterprises Put Lid Copy right -use of logo GMA-astistic work -2015:2016 § 1,000 2,105
Tatal 53,01,507 1,11,11,151
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Note 37
Gratulty and ather post-employment benefit plans
{i) Defined Benefit Plan
Gratulty

The Company has a defined benelit gratuity plan Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets @
gratuity on departure at 15 days satary {last drawn salary} for each completed year of service The scheme Isa funded Gratuity

Schema,

Gratuity Plan:

Defined benefit obligation {080}
Fair value of plan assets (FVA)

Net defined benafit asset/{liability)

Amounts in Rupees

3032018 |

31-Mar17 |

{94,93,548) (66,67,074)
42,37.043 52,32,659
(52,56,508) (14,24,415)

The lollowing tables summarise the components of net penefit expense recogmsed n the statement of profit or loss/0C) and
amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligat:ons:

Net employee benefit expense {recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Particulars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Current Service Cost 23,27,501 9,58,534
Net Interest Cost 98,122 2,16,85%

24,25,623 11,75,382
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 3ist March, 2018
Gratulty

Particufars 31.03.2018 31.03-2017

Actusrial (gain)/ loss on obligations 14,54,804 {35,913)

Changes In the prasent value of the definad benefit obligation for the year ended 31st March, 2018 are s follows.

Particulars 31.03.2018 31-03-2047
Opening defined chligstion 66,67,074 75,02,248
Current service cost 6,82,300 9,58,531
Interest cost on the 0BO 4,22,455 5,85,175
Past service cost plan amendments 16,45,201
Acquistion {credit)/cost 46,511 {23,42,968)
Actuarial {gain}/ loss - experlence 17,31,371 (3,59,391)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic assumptions . -
Acwarlal {gain)/ loss - Financial assumptiont (2,67,348)| 3,23,478
Benefits paid from plan assets (14,34,016) -
Actuarial {gain)/ loss on obligations
Defined benefit obligation 94,.93,548 66,67,074
Changes in the fair value of the plan assets {or the year ended 315t March, 2018 are as follows

Particulars 31.03-2018 31.03-2017
Fair value of assets at the end of the prior period 52,32,659 46,96,120
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest income on pian assets 3,24,333 3,68,324
Employer contributions 1,094,848 51,874
Return on plan assets greater/ {lesser} than discount rate 9,218 1,16,241
Benefits paid -14,34,016 -
Eair value of assats at the end of the current perlod 42,37,043 52,32,659

The principal assumnptions used In datermining gratuity obligation for the Cempany's pans are shown below

Particulars Gratulty
31-pMar-i8 3i-Mar-17

Discount rate {in %) 7.60% 1.10%

Salary Escalation {in %) 6% 6%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption a; at 31 March 201815 as shown below: ) »:@“*”’M

g/@:@;ﬁ atuity Plan ff/v"
() (, }% 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31.par-18 31-Mar-174{ €
2] Ch&r{&yfé(ﬁ prions Discount vate Future satary Increases
\ %win tivity Level 7.60% AR 6% &
INR Lacs INR Lacs INR Lucs INR Lacs

N




Impact on defined banefit obligation . . . .
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years
31-Mar.18 31-Mar-17
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 6,35,590 4,58,646

Yhe sverage duratian of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period Is 10 years {31 March 2018 10 vears)

(i) Liability towards leave encashment based on actuarial valuation armounts ta Rs, 1,26,34,087/- as at March 31, 2038 (March 31, 2017 Rs
1,08,74,092/-}

i
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Note.39
Notes to the financial statements as ar March 31,2018

Finantial risk rnanagemant objectives and policies

In the course of its businass, the Company is exposed pruma:dy to fluctuations in foregn currency exchange rates, intetest rates, equity prices. Lquidity and credit
sisk, which may adver sely Impact the fale value of its financial instrurnents The Cornpany bas a risk managament policy which not only covers the furelgn exchange
tlsks but also other risks associated with the financlal assets and liabilities such as interast rate risks and cred- risks The risk management policy I approved by the
Board of Diractors The risk management framework aims o

(i} create a stable business planming enviranment by reducing the Impact of cutrency and intzrest rate Huctuations oo the Company's business phaa
{ii} achieve greater predictobriity to earn'ngs by determining the financia’ value of the expacted carnongs in advance

Market rlsk

{a) Market risk- Interest rate rizk

Intereit rate tisk Is the fisk that the falr valus ar future cash Fows of a fnancal instrument walt fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates, The
Company's expasute 1o the sk of changes in market interest ratey refates primardy to the Company's long-term and short-term debt obligatrons with flnating
Interest rates

The Company manages its nterest rate risk by having s balanced portiohio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings

(b} Market risk- Foreign currency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential rmpact on the consobdated statement of profit and loss and equity, where any transaction
references more than one currency or where asselsiiabiities are denommated =n a currency sther than the functional currency of the respective consolidated
entities. Considaring the countres and e:onamic eavironment in which the Company operates, ts operatians are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in
exchange rates in those countries

Craditrisk

Credt nisk is the risk that coumterparty wdl nat meet Az obigat-ons under a financla’ instrument or customer contract, leadng to 3 financial loss. Finanoal
instrumants that are subject to credit risk and corcentration thereal principally cons:st of trade receivables, loans receivables, lavestments, cash and cash
equivalents, derlvat:ves and financial guarantees provided by the Company.

The canrylng value of finandal assets represents the maximum credit risk The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs,170,53,17,990 and Rs. 167,49,46,772/-as at
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively, heing the tota! carrying value of trade receivables, halances with bank, bank deposits, investments and other
Fnancial assets

Customer credit fsk 15 managed by each butiness unit subject to the Company’s established pobey, procedures and control relating to custamer credit risk
management An impairment analysis is performed at each ceporting date on an individual basis for major tlients The Company does not hold cotlateral as socurity

With respect to trade receivables / unbilled revenue, the Company has consttuted the terms to review the receivables on a periadic basis and to take necessary
mitigations, vheraver required. The Company creates alowance for all unsecured raceivables based on lifetime expecied credit loss based on g provision matris
The pravision matrix takes inta account bistorical credit Joss experience and 1s adjusted for forward looking information Tha expected credit loss allowance Is based
on the ageing of the racevables that are due and the rates used in the provision matrix

Credit risk from balances with bank and financial inshitutions Is reanaged by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy
lavestrents of sutplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterpanty The fimits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial Joss through counterpany's potential failure to make payments

tn respect of financial guaraniees provided by the Company to banks and financial institutions, the masimurm exposure which the Company Is exposed to s the
maximum smaunt which the Company would bave to pay iIf the guarantee is called upon Based on the espectation at the end of the reporting period, the Company
considers that it is mare (ikely than not that such an amount will not be payable under the guarantees provided

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers 1o the risk that the Group cannol meet its Fnancial obligations The objective of liquidity risk management is to ma:ntaln sufficient lHiquidity and
gnsure that funds are available for use ax per requivements The Group hay obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks
Furthermore, the Group has access 10 funds from delil markets theough conventible dehentures, non-conventible debentures, bonds and other debt instiumants
The Group Invests its sueplus funds In bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which tarries no ot low market risk

The Group moaitors its .tk of a shortags of funds on a regular basis The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexhility
through the use of bank overdrafts, bank feans, debentures, preference shares, sale of assets snd strategic partnership with investors ete.

The following table shows a maturity ana'ysis of the anticipated cash Hows ‘ncluding interess obligations for the Group's financial lishilit es on an undiscounted
basis, which therefora d-ffer from both carrying value and Fair value Floating rate interestis astimated using the prevalling interest rate at the end of the teporting
paried

(8s.In crure}

1

Particulars ) -1 year 1to S vears » § yoars Total
‘Mareh 33, 2018 ) ) {
Barrowings {other than convertible preference shares) 7.36,01,12,744 9,12,70,44, 1018 § 16,48,71 56,844
Other financial llabulities ) 1,07.40,40,398 1.63,71,86% - 1,03,04.12,267
ton Trade payables 1,36,32,75,845 3,20,80,29,504 B _ 4,57,23,05,353
Total - ) 4,79,74,28,967 12,35,24,45,477 ) o 31,14,95,74,454

Batrawings (other than convertible preferenca shares)

Related Party- Enthy wha _ ,61,15,23,358 9,83,77,44,928 B 15,54,92,58,285
GMR Infrastructure Limited  5,0287%,23,358 4,76,88,10,563 ] 9,79,68,33.927
GMR Highways Limited 5.00.00,000 1,67,50,00,000 1,72,50,00,000
GMR Genco Assets Limited - _15,00,00.000 ) 15,00,00,000
Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pvt Ltd ] - 4.29.34,359 . 4,29,34,358 |

4R Aee0ytrugtures Services Limited T ) - 25,10,00,300 25,10,00,0084
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GNA Generation Assats Ld » N 1,25,00 00,000 1,25,00,00,000

Ohruyi Securities Pyt Limited - 75,00,00,000 75,00,00,000
GMR 582 and Port Holdings Ltd 1,50,00,00,000 . 1,50,00,00,000

Raxa Security Services Limitad 3,35,00,000 5,00,00,000 8,35,00,000
Others {fram Banks, linancial institution and others) 74,85 89,386 18,92,99,172 53,‘18,88,55&{
Total 7,36,01,12,744 8,11,70,44,100{ - 15,48,71,56,844

Other financlal Habilities

Relsted Party- Entity wise 1,06,69,32.350 B - 1,06,69,32,350
GMR Infrasteuciyre Limited 67,29,64,067 §7,29,64,067
GMR Highways Limited 16,91,49,21 15,91,49,217
GMA HOSUR ENERGY LIMITED 2,24,63,815 2,24,63,818
Kakinada Rafinery and Petro chemicals Pyt Limited 49,38,163 45,38,163
GMA Generation Assets Ltd 11,67,38,014 11,67,38,014
GIMR HYDERABAD AIRPORT RESOURLE 2,1B,12,525 2,18,12,524
flaxa Security Services Uimited 25,18,227] 25,18,22%|
Dfiruvi Securittes Pyt Lid §,63,48,312 5,63,48,327
Others 71,08,048 1,63,71,869 2,34,78,91%
Totat 1,07,40,40,398] 1,63,71,868 . 1,09,04,12,267

Trade payablas

Related Party- Entity wise 1,36,32,75,845 . 1,35,32,75,845
GHRLHOTEL DIVISION Tota! {67,434 {67,434)
GMR A-RPORT DEVELOPERS LIMITED Total 39,90,970 39,90,870)
GMR ENERGY TRADING LTD Total 24,381,952 24,81,957
GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED Tota! 1,120 1,12
GMR HIGHWAYS UMITED Total 1,35,16,00,00C 1.35,16,00,000
GMR HOSPITALITY ANI3 RETAIL LTD. Total 67,434 67,434
GMR HYDERABAD INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT Total 39,04,223 39,04,223
GMR INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED Tota! {28,99,648) (28,89,648)
RAXA SECUR:TY SERVICES LIMITED Tatal 41,87,228 41,87,22

Others 3,20,90,29,508] 3,20,90,29,508]

1,36,32,75,845 3,20,90,28,508] . 4,57,23,05,353
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Note Ho.40

Disclosures on Financiad mstroments

This scction v es an overvien of the sigatficance of finaner? mstrments for e g and provides addinonshnformaton va latance shect
items thae conrain financial mstrimunes

() Financial nssets and Habilitics

As at Masch 31, 2018

Pacticulars

Fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

Fair value through
profit or Joss

Awmartised cost

Totul
Carrying value

Total
Fair value

Finuncial asscets

O Cash and eash equn alenis - - 60,86,202 $0,86,202 04,86,202
i} Trade Receivables 43,900 63,900 63,900
{ili) Loans - 3,753 3,75% 3,733
(iv) Othee fivancinl assets 25,02,58,333 25,02,38,353 25,02,58,353
‘Total . - 25,64,12,208 25,64,12,208 23,64,12,208
Financiul Habilities - - -
i1 Boowings 912,70, 44,100 9,12,70,44,1060 9,12,70,44,100
(i) Non Trade payihles 3,200,943,29,508 3,20,90,29,308 3,20,90,29,508
(1) Other fimancial Gabilities 9,34, 30,20,447 ©,34,30,20,447 9,34,30,20,447
Total - - 21,67,90,94,035 21,67,90,94,0535 21,67,90,94,035
As ar March 31, 2017

{Rs, in crore)

(R @ iU fgilitedt)
other Fair value through Total Total

Particnlars

comprehensive

fucoxon

profic oe Joss

Amortised cost

Carrying value

Fair value

Financial assets

a3 Cash and eash equivatents
() Trade Revenables

(i} Loans

{sv) Othier finaral asets

Total

Finuncial ubilities

(i) Borrowings

(i1) Non Trade payables

(i1} Other financial liahilities
Total

35,08,760 358,760 35,008,760

60,956 00,056 60,956

28,000 28,000 28,000

21,6),77,672 261,771,672 21,61,77,672

. - 21,97,75,388 21,07,75,388 21,97,75,388
13,28,04,67,690 13,28,04,67,690 13,28,04,67,690

2038707414 2038797414 203,87,97,4t4

401,71,00,730 401,71,00,750 401,71,00,750

- - 11,33,63,65,854 19,33,63,65,854 19,33,63,65,854




Note « 41
1 Significant accounting Judgements, estimates and assumplions

(i1 ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The key assumptlons concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 3t the reparting date, that have a sipnificant ¢sk of causing a matestal
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the aext financlal year, are descrlbed below The company based ity assumptions and estimates o
parametars available when the Dnanc'al statements were prepared. Exlsting cireumstances and assumptions about future developments, howaver, may thange dua 1o
market changes or citcumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company Such changes ace reflacted in the assumation: when they occur

{it} tmpatrment af non-financial assets

Impalrment exists when the carrving value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which {5 the h-gher of its fair va'ue less casts of disposal
and lts value In use. The fair value fess costs of disposal caleulation Is based on availabla data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s ‘ength, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremantal costs for disposing of the astet. The va'ue in use caleulation Is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructurng activities that the company is not yet committed to of significant futura investments that wid
enhance the atset's performance of the CGU belng tested. The recoverable amount Is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF mude! a8 well a3 the expected
future cashi-inflows and the grovth rate used far extrapolation purposes. The key assumptians used to determing the recoveralile amount far the ditferent CGUs.
including a sensitlvity analysis, are disclosed

thi} Tases
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that It is probable that tazable prolit will be available against which the fosses can be utilited.
Sigmficant management Judgement Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, bated upon the fikely timing and the level of
futare taxable profits together with future tax planning strategles,

The eompany has Rs.6,30,91,493/- (31 March 2016 NIL ) of tax fosses carried forward. These lusses relate a histary of losses, expire In B years and may not be used to
offset taxable Incoma elsewlhiers in the company In view of availing tax deduction under Section S0AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 Deferred tax has to be recognized In
respect of temporary difference, which reverse after the tox hollday period In the year in which the temporary difference originate and no defarred tax {assets or
liabitities) Is recognized in respect of temporary difference which reverse during tax holiday pariod, to the extent such gross total income s subject to the deduction
dutng the tax holiday period.The Company neither have any taxable temparary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the cormpany has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax lnsses carrled
forward,

{iv] Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The sost of the defined benelit gratulty plan and the presant value of the gratuity obligation are determined wsing actuartal valuations As actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fulure, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complaxities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, @ defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

The parameter mast subject to change Is the discount rate In determining the appropriale discount rate for plans operatad :n Ind-a, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies conshitent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate {s based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change paly al interval in respanse to
demographic changes. Future salary Increases and gratuity Increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countrios

Further detalls about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37

{v} Contingencies
Contingent liabllities may asise from the ordinary course of business in refatlon to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor, tand access and other rlaims
By their nature, contingencies w:il be resalved only when one or more uncertaln future evants occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the axistence, and potent-al
nuantum, of contingencies inharently Involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates rgarding the autcome of future avents

{vi} Falr value raeasurement of finandal Instrurnents
When the falr values of financial assets and financial Kablities recorded in the balance sheet tannot be measured basad on quoted prices in activa markets, their fair
value i§ measured usiag valuatizn techniques Including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, bot where thisis
nat feasible, a degren of judgement is requlred in establishing fair values. judgements include consideratons of inputs such as fiquidity risk, cradit risk and votatility
Changes In assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair vaive of financial instruments

{vii} The carrylng amount of al: {nancial assets and liabilities appearing in the financial statements |: reasonable approximation of fair values

{vili} The company being a developer of SEZ, Is eligible for clalming deduction of the profits from SE2 development activity under Section 80 1AB of Income tax act for 2 perind
of 10 consecutive years in the block of 15 yeaes fromn date of not:fivation of SEZ. The cumpany was first notified as an SE2 on 23rd April 2007 and hecame operational in
2016 and aztzrdingly the henefit of claiming deduction under Sec 80 1AB will be available till FY 202122,
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Note : 42

a) New (ndian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-stap mode! to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under (nd AS This new standard
requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customars in amounts that reflect
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the
new rules could affect thz timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of the Company. Ind AS 115 is effective for
the Company in the first quarter of fiscat 2019 and permits two possible mutheds of transition:

{1} Retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS B Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and £rrors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 {the full
retrospective method), or

(il} Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initlally applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial application (1
April 2018) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in tnd AS 115 {the modified retrospective methad).

The Group continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact an
revenue resulting from the application of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables,
including, but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Company's
conslderations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its financial staterents and the comparabiiity within
its industry from application of the new standard to its contractual arrangements. The Company has established an
implamentation team to implernent Ind AS 115 related to tha recognition of revenue from tontracts with customers and it
continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and proceasses, and additional disclosure requirements that may be
Necessary.

Upon adoption the Company exprets there to be a change In the manner that vartable consideration in certain revenue
arrangernents is recognized from the current practice of recognizing such revenue as the services are performed and the
varlable consideration is earned to estimating the achievability of the variable conditions when the Company begins
delivering services and recognizing that amount over the contractual period, The Company also expects a change in the
manaer that it recognizes certain inceemental and fulfilment costs from expensing them as incurred to deferring and
recognizing them over the contractual period. A refiable estimate of the guantitative impact of ind AS 115 on the financial
statements will only be possitsle once the implemantation project has been completed,

b} Amendments to Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) issued but not yet effective
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the financial staternents
are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA} has issued the Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017
and Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standard

Amendments to ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sourcas of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an eatity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable
profit raay include the recovery of some assets for more than their carryving amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments, the
change in the opening equuty of the earhest comparative period may be recognised in opemng re(amed earnmgs {or in

components of equity. Entities applying this rehef must diselose that fact.
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These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 01 or after 1 April 2018. These amendments are not expactad
to have any impact on the company 2s the company has no deductible temparary differances or assets that are In the scope
of the amendments. :

Appendix 810 Ind AS 21 Forelgn Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, In determining the spot exchange rate to use oa initial recognition of the related asset, expense
of Income (or part of It} on the derecognition of & non-monetary asset or non-monetary fiahllity relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or racelpts in ‘advanee, then the
entity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance conslderation,

Entitles may app’y the Append!x reguirements on a fullty retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply these
requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in it scope that are initially recognised on or after:

{1} The beginning of the reporting periad in which the entity first applies the Appendm, or

(il) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting perlod In which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for snnual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprif- 2018. However, since the Company's current
practice is In line with the Interpretation, the Comnpany does not expect any effect on its financial statements,

Amendraents ta ind AS 40 - Transfers of investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development
into, or oul of investment property. The amendments state that 3 change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there Is avidence of the change in use. A mere change In management’s
Intentions for the use of a property does not-provide avidence of a change in use.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changas In use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of property
held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective
application in accordance with Ind AS 8 is anly permitted if it 15 possible without the use of hindsight.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 The Company will apply amendments
when they become effective. Howaver, sinte Company's: current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the
Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

For K.5.Ra0 & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Diractars
Firm Regn No: 0031095
Chartered Accountants
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M.Krishna Chalthanya B.V.N.Rao P Jayhdev

Partner Dlregtor Oirector

Membership No. 231287 DIN. Q0051167 DIN: 00782667
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G.V. Suresh Kumar Srinivasa Rao Suru
Company Sacretary CFO

Place Hydarabad Place: Hyderbad

Date: 30th April, 2018 Date: 30th April, 2018
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